Public Document Pack

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 22ND APRIL 2025
AT 6.00 P.M.

PARKSIDE SUITE, PARKSIDE, MARKET STREET, BROMSGROVE,
WORCESTERSHIRE, B61 8DA

MEMBERS: Councillors H. J. Jones (Chairman), M. Marshall (Vice-
Chairman), A. Bailes, S. J. Baxter, J. Clarke, S. M. Evans,
D. J. A. Forsythe, E. M. S. Gray, R. E. Lambert,
B. McEldowney and J. D. Stanley

AGENDA

To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes
Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm

the nature of those interests.

Updates to planning applications reported at the meeting (to be circulated
prior to the start of the meeting)



24/00117/S73 - Variation of condition 25 of planning permission
APP/P1805/W/20/3245111 allowed on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA 16/1132):
FROM: No part of the development shall be occupied until the junction of Fox
Lane/ Rock Hill has been altered in accordance with the scheme for a
roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/ Rock Hill schematic ref 7033-SK-
005 revision F. AMEND TO: No more than 49 dwellings shall be occupied
until the junction of Fox Lane/Rock Hill has been altered in accordance with
the scheme for a roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/Rock Hill schematic
scheme ref 7033-SK-005 revision G and ancillary drawings 7033-s278-701
rev C02, 2015804 AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0002, 0003, 0004, 0005, 0006 REV
C02. Land at Whitford Road, Bromsgrove. Bellway Homes (Pages 9 - 37)

To consider any Urgent business, details of which have been notified to the
Assistant Director of Legal, Democratic and Procurement Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until
the next meeting.

To consider, and if considered appropriate, to pass the following resolution to
exclude the public from the meeting during the consideration of item of
business containing exempt information:-

"RESOLVED: that under Section 100 | of the Local Government Act 1972, as
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of
the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of Schedule 12A to the
Act, as amended, the relevant paragraph of that part, in each case, being as
set out below, and that it is in the public interest to do so:-

Iltem No. Paragraph

7 5 !

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meetings of the Planning
Committee held on 4th March 2025 and 1st April 2025 (To Follow) (Pages 39 -
45)

J. Leach
Chief Executive
Parkside
Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

10th April 2025






If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Pauline Ross
Democratic Services Officer

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA
Tel: 01527 881406

Email: p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers,
please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above.

Please note that this is a public meeting and will be live streamed for
general access via the Council’s YouTube channel.

You are able to see and hear the livestream of the meeting from the

Committee Pages of the Council’s website, alongside the agenda for the
meeting.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

The usual process for public speaking at meetings of the Planning
Committee will continue to be followed subject to some adjustments.

For further details a copy of the amended Planning Committee
Procedure Rules can be found on the Council’s website.

The process approved by the Council for public speaking at meetings of
the Planning Committee is (subject to the discretion and control of the
Chair), as summarised below: -

1) Introduction of application by Chair
2) Officer presentation of the report

3) Public Speaking - in the following order: -
a. objector (or agent/spokesperson on behalf of objectors);
b. applicant, or their agent (or supporter);
c. Parish Council representative (if applicable);
d. Ward Councillor


mailto:p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Each party will have up to a maximum of 3 minutes to speak, subject to
the discretion of the Chair.

Speakers will be called in the order they have notified their interest in
speaking to the Democratic Services Officer and will be invited to
unmute their microphone and address the Committee face-to-face or via
Microsoft Teams.

4) Members’ questions to the Officers and formal debate / determination.
Notes:

1) Anyone wishing to address the Planning Committee on applications
on this agenda must notify the Democratic Services Officer on 01527
881406 or by email to p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

before 12 noon on Thursday 17t April 2025.

2) Advice and assistance will be provided to public speakers as to how
to access the meeting and those registered to speak will be invited to
participate face-to-face or via a Microsoft Teams invitation.

Provision has been made in the amended Planning Committee
procedure rules for public speakers who cannot access the meeting via
Microsoft Teams, and those speakers will be given the opportunity to
submit their speech in writing to be read out by an officer at the meeting.

Please take care when preparing written comments to ensure that the
reading time will not exceed three minutes. Any speakers wishing to
submit written comments must do so by 12 noon on Thursday 17" April
2025.

3) Reports on all applications will include a summary of the responses
received from consultees and third parties, an appraisal of the main
planning issues, the case officer’s presentation and a recommendation.
All submitted plans and documentation for each application, including
consultee responses and third party representations, are available to
view in full via the Public Access facility on the Council’s website
www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

4) It should be noted that, in coming to its decision, the Committee can
only take into account planning issues, namely policies contained in the
Bromsgrove District Plan (the Development Plan) and other material
considerations, which include Government Guidance and other relevant


mailto:p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/

policies published since the adoption of the Development Plan and the
“environmental factors” (in the broad sense) which affect the site.

5) Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when the
Committee might have to move into closed session to consider exempt
or confidential information. For agenda items that are exempt, the pubic
are excluded, and the live stream will be suspended and that part of the
meeting will not be recorded.



Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

Access to Information

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain
documents. Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act.

» You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before
the date of the meeting.

» You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting.

» You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date
of the meeting. These are listed at the end of each report.

» An electronic register stating the names and addresses and
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of
all Committees etc. is available on our website.

» A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards.

» You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers
concerned, as detailed in the Council’'s Constitution, Scheme of
Delegation.

You can access the following documents:
» Meeting Agendas
» Meeting Minutes

> The Council’s Constitution

at www.bromsagrove.gov.uk



http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Name of

Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.

Bellway Homes Variation of condition 25 of planning 02.05.2025 24/00117/S73
permission APP/P1805/W/20/3245111
allowed on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA
16/1132):

FROM: No part of the development shall be
occupied until the junction of Fox Lane/
Rock Hill has been altered in accordance
with the scheme for a roundabout shown on
the plan Fox Lane/ Rock Hill schematic ref
7033-SK-005 revision F.

AMEND TO: No more than 49 dwellings
shall be occupied until the junction of Fox
Lane/Rock Hill has been altered in
accordance with the scheme for a
roundabout shown on the plan Fox
Lane/Rock Hill schematic scheme ref 7033-
SK-005 revision G and ancillary drawings
7033-s278-701 rev C02, 2015804 AGE-
ZZ-XX-DR-X-0002, 0003, 0004, 0005, 0006
REV CO02.

Land at Whitford Road, Bromsgrove
RECOMMENDATION:

(1) MINDED to GRANT permission to amend condition 25 of planning permission
APP/P1805/W/20/3245111 allowed on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA 16/1132)

(2) That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Assistant Director for Planning,
Leisure and Culture Services to agree the final scope and detailed wording and
numbering of conditions and other conditions attached to the original planning
permission.

Consultations

Worcestershire Highways - Bromsgrove
No objection — comments are provided in full:

Worcestershire County Council, acting in its role as the Highway Authority, has
undertaken a full assessment of this planning application. Based on the appraisal of the
development proposal, the Transport Planning and Development Management Team
Leader, on behalf of the County Council, under Article 18 of the Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order, 2015 recommends No
Objection.

Page 9



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

Previous responses
A summary of the previous responses to this application are set out below:

» The Highway Authority previously responded to this application in formal observations
dated 16th June 2024 advising refusal on the grounds that the residual cumulative
impacts of the development on the road network would be severe contrary to
paragraph 115 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023). At that
time, the application sought to vary the trigger point of the mitigation works at the
B4091 Rock Hill/ Fox Lane junction from the trigger of zero dwelling occupations to no
more than 75 dwelling occupations. Traffic modelling submitted for this application
was based upon 2017 data and tested the implication of 75 dwellings.

« A further consultation was received from the Local Planning Authority where the
Applicant proposed to alter the condition to allow up to 39 occupations. The Highway
Authority reviewed this and responded to this application in formal observations dated
2nd October 2024 advising refusal on the grounds that the residual cumulative
impacts of the development on the road network would be severe contrary to
paragraph 115 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023). Traffic
modelling submitted for this application was based upon 2017 data and tested the
implication of 39 dwellings.

» The most recent consultation was received from the Local Planning Authority where
the Applicant proposed to alter the condition to allow up to 49 occupations. The
Highway Authority reviewed this and responded to this application in formal
observations dated 17th February 2024 advising refusal on the grounds that the
residual cumulative impacts of the development on the road network would be severe
contrary to paragraph 115 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December
2023). Traffic modelling submitted for this application was based upon 2024 data and
tested the implications of 100 dwellings noting the description of the application was
for 49 dwellings.

Current consultation

At present, the planning condition (25) requires this scheme to be in place prior to the
consented development site being occupied. The scheme comprises the conversion of
the current priority junction arrangement to a 3-arm roundabout. The general
arrangement of the works is shown in supporting drawing 7033-SK-005 revision F.

This variation of condition application, now seeks to vary the trigger point for the
improvement scheme, allowing for 49 dwelling occupations prior to implementation.

In support of this planning application, the following highway information has been

submitted by the Applicant:

« 2017 ATC SUMMARY;

» 2024 MCC DATA;

* Non-Technical Summary, WSP, 7th March 2025;

* FOX LANE / ROCK HILL SCHEMATIC PROPOSED ARRANGEMENT, 7033-
SK-005 REV G, Rev G; and,

» Technical Note 3, WSP, 7th March 2025.

Page 10



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

In addition to the above a series of ancillary drawings 7033-s278-701 rev C02, 2015804
AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0002, 0003, 0004, 0005, 0006 REV C02 are included. These appear
to relate to a retaining wall.

The description of this current application, in addition to the proposed variation of the
timing/ trigger, relates to the substitution of the scheme of works drawing Revision F to
Revision G. Revision G shows the location of the proposed retaining wall. From a
highway and transportation perspective, there are no proposed changes to the form,
scale and footprint of the roundabout scheme when comparing Revision F and Revision
G.

Impact Assessment

Supporting Technical Note 3 states:

Following the previous submission, WSP has:

+ Commissioned September 2024 Manual Classified Counts (MMC) traffic counts at the
Fox Lane / Rock Hill junction

+ Commissioned September 2024 Automatic Traffic Counts (ATC) traffic counts on Fox
Lane and various other links in the local area

* Generate forecast development traffic flows for 8, 20, 30, 40, and 49 dwellings

» Undertake updated traffic junction assessment at Fox Lane Rock Hill using 2024
survey data

» Consider the impacts of the additional 49 residential units on the existing junction
arrangement and surrounding network.

» Consider potential impacts upon ‘rat running’ through the Millfield area — a known
concern for residents.

Trip Generation

Applying previously agreed trip rates, it is predicted that 49 occupied dwellings would
generate approximately 33 two-way trips during the AM peak hour (08:00 — 09:00) and 35
two-way trips during the PM peak hour (17:00 — 18:00).

Traffic Distribution

Using the previously agreed traffic distribution and assignment assumptions, it is
anticipated that during the AM peak hour, 49 occupied dwellings would result in 18 two-
way trips travelling through the B4091 Rock Hill/ Fox Lane junction. During the PM peak
hour, it is predicted that 18 two-way trips would travel through the junction.

Junction Impact Assessment

Junction modelling has been undertaken using Junctions 11. The Applicant has
undertaken the following modelling scenarios:

+ 2024 Baseline

» 2024 Baseline + 8 dwellings

« 2024 Baseline + 20 dwellings

» 2024 Baseline + 30 dwellings

« 2024 Baseline + 40 dwellings

« 2024 Baseline + 49 dwellings

Technical Note 3 states:
When using Junctions 11, a DIRECT profile is to be used when you have
detailed, specific traffic data for a junction. This profile allows the user to input

Page 11



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

precise traffic counts for vehicles entering and exiting the junction at different

times, typically broken down into 15-minute intervals. Given that this is an

existing junction and traffic surveys of an appropriate level of detail have been
obtained, the DIRECT profile has been used in all scenarios to ensure that the model
reflects real-world conditions as closely as possible, leading to more

reliable results.

The table below summarises the modelling results:

AM PM
2024 Baseline
AR Queue Delay RFC Queue Delay
(PCU) (seconds) (%) (PCU) (seconds) RFC (%)
Fox Lane 8.1 81.68 0.92 1.8 23.96 0.66
Rock Hill 0.7 6.62 0.30 1.8 0.45 0.54
2024 Baseline + 8 dwellings
P Queue Delay RFC Queue Delay
(PCU) (seconds) (%) (PCU) (seconds) RFC (%)
Fox Lane 8.1 81.72 0.92 1.9 24 86 0.67
Rock Hill 07 6.62 0.30 1.8 9.48 0.54
2024 Baseline + 20 dwellings
T Queue Delay RFC Queue Delay
(PCU) (seconds) (%a) (PCU) (seconds) RFC (%)
Fox Lane B4 8517 0.93 20 26.06 0.69
Rock Hill 0.7 6.62 0.30 1.8 8.70 0.55
2024 Baseline + 30 dwellings
- Queue Delay RFC Queue Delay
{PCU) (seconds) (%) (PCU) (seconds) RFC (%)
Fox Lane 86 87.01 0.93 20 26.27 0.69
Rock Hill 0.7 6.72 0.31 20 0.94 0.56
2024 Baseline + 40 dwellings
AP Queue Delay RFC Queue Delay
(PCU) (seconds) (%) (PCU) (seconds) RFC (%)
Fox Lane 83 94.53 0.94 20 26.27 0.69
Rock Hill 0.7 6.72 0.31 20 997 0.56
2024 Baseline + 49 dwellings
P Queue Delay RFC Queue Delay
(PCU) (seconds) (%) (PCU) (seconds) RFC (%)
Fox Lane 94 94,60 0.94 20 26.50 0.69
Rock Hill 0.7 6.72 0.31 20 898 0.56

A summary of the key outputs is presented below:

* The 2024 junction model currently operates over capacity during the AM peak hour;

« Comparing 2017 and 2024 traffic volumes, the data indicates that traffic volumes have
generally reduced across the relevant network;

Page 12



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

+ The predicted current (2024) delay experienced by drivers on Fox Lane (the minor
arm which gives-way to the Rock Hill) during the AM peak is 82 seconds (1 minutes
22 seconds). Average queuing on this arm is approximately 47 metres;

» Following the introduction of development traffic (49 dwellings), the junction
experiences further deterioration in performance.

» Average delays on Fox Lane increase to 95 seconds (1 minutes 35 seconds); a total
increase in an average delay experienced by drivers of 13 seconds during the AM
peak. Average queuing on Fox Lane is predicted to reach a length of 54 metres (an
increase of 7 metres)

Implication of Impact

Supporting Technical Note 3 presents a commentary of the Applicant’s view on the
implication of the impact of development traffic at the B4091 Rock Hill/ Fox Lane junction.
It is noted that:

To conclude, the traffic modelling has been completed and reviewed, showing that during
the worst observed period (8:45 to 9:00) the maximum delay in the 49-dwelling scenario
is only 13 seconds. This delay occurs only during a brief part of the 8:45 to 9:00 period.
Therefore, it is considered that the additional delay generated by the occupied dwellings
is considered to be negligible. For example, at 20 dwellings occupied, there will only be a
3.5 second increase in delay. The peak hour (8:45am to 9:00am) has been identified as
the period with the highest delays and serves as a summary of the daily queuing trends,
demonstrating that congestion is limited at other times of the day.

As noted in the original Transport Assessment and the Transport Assessment Addendum
submitted to support the outline application, “it was identified that improvements to the
Rock Hill / Fox Lane junction would be required for any future development at Whitford
Road and therefore should be offered by the proposed development to mitigate its impact
on the already at capacity junction arrangement”’

' Land at Whitford, Transport Assessment Addendum, WSP, January 2018, paragraph
5.2.30

Turning to the specific impacts of the operation of the junction as a result of this current
proposal, drivers are anticipated to experience an average increase in delay on Fox Lane
during the AM peak of 13 seconds compared to the 2024 baseline situation. The
modelling shows that queuing is forecast to increase by 7 metres with a predicted queue
length on Fox Lane of 54 metres.

The proposed junction improvement scheme, in addition to providing capacity relief,
seeks to change the priorities at the junction where traffic demand on the minor arm (Fox
Lane) is forecast to increase as a result of the overall development. Based on the current
arrangement, where the minor arm (Fox Lane) gives-way to Rock Hill, the modelling
evidence presented predicts increases in delay some 16% greater than those currently
experienced in 2024.

The Highway Authority has reviewed the performance of the model to replicate observed
queues. The Applicant presents an assessment of the observed queuing on Fox Lane in
Technical Note 3. Figure 4 [2024 Baseline Recorded Queue Lengths] is extracted and
replicated below:

Page 13



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

Figure 4- 2024 Baseline Recorded Queue Lengths

Queue Length - AM Peak 2024
25

20

21
14
12 %) 12
11 11
10 10
9
.
I 6
0 I
% o S o & o % o S o 5 o
S $ 2 0 5 5 5 S RS S 3 IS
N &® & &® & ® & & N & Ng N

i~ & & . o o o o o o o o
S S 5 I o5 o ) 3 R R ) s
& & & & & & & & & & & K

=
wv

vehicles

=
o

w

Time Period

M Lane 1 & 2 - Fox Lane

Technical Note 3 states:

As shown, the between 8:00 and 8:55 the maximum queue observed was 14 vehicles
which results in 77m queue based on a 5.5m PCU value per vehicle and average being
11 vehicles. The queue is then observed to increase to 21 vehicles between 8:55 to 9:00
time period. The 21 vehicle queue at 8.55am which only occurs in that one 5 minute
period appears to be an anomaly compared to the rest of the recorded hour, a review of
the camera footage has been completed which indicated this was just a short period of
queueing that was cleared within 1 minute.

It goes on to state: -

While the model forecasts 8 vehicles in the queue, the average maximum recorded
queue over the AM hour is 11 vehicles, whilst the average queue record at the end of
each five-minute period over the hour is 4 vehicles. As such, the model queue forecast of
8 vehicles provides an appropriate balance between representing the maximum queues
and also recognising the fluctuations in queuing across the hour. This must be
considered as there are clear periods across the hour where there are no queues present
at the junction, and artificially 'throttling the junction to reflect a maximum queue in likely
to lead to unrealistic results.

JUNCTIONS 11 modelling software is a widely used software for analysing priority
junctions. But like all models, there are limitations. One of these is the ability of the model
to accurately represent actual fluctuations in traffic volume, as evidenced by the queue
survey data provided. The model is also not able to quantify the impacts of redistribution/

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

demand responses as a result of congestion on the network. The Highway Authority does
not accept a PCU value of 5.5m and instead has used a PCU value of 5.75m.

Based upon the model submission, the Highway Authority does not consider the model a
unrealistic representation of network conditions where congestion, queuing and delays do
occur and are shown to in the model outputs.

Based upon the information presented, the deterioration in network performance cannot
reasonably be considered severe in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework. Since development was planned to be supported by this infrastructure from
first occupation but this has not happened, the impacts of development are shown to lead
to further deterioration of network performance, increasing queuing and delay and
therefore associated inconvenience to road users where the junction is shown to operate
over capacity. The scale and duration of the impacts of this development are not
considered to meet the severity threshold.

The analysis presented in the most recent supporting Technical Note demonstrates the
need to deliver the scheme at no later than the 49th dwelling occupation.

In its consideration of the impacts of the development, the Highway Authority has also
given due consideration to viable alternatives or transport options for residents. The
Highway Authority can confirm that there is a new toucan crossing on Whitford Road
close to the site access providing an active travel connection to Sanders Park towards
the town centre. As a minimum, this offers a viable alternative to car use in light of
existing congestion?

2 https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2024-
09/1%20Whitford%20Ro0ad %2C%20Bromsgrove %20-%20Toucan%20Crossing.pdf.

Timing for the proposed scheme of works

The modelling scenarios indicate a programme where an incremental approach to

understanding the implications of development has been taken by the Applicant. This

represents a build and occupation trajectory for the housing, and timeline for the

completion of the proposed scheme of works:

» 2024 Baseline

+ 2024 Baseline + 8 dwellings (end of February)

» 2024 Baseline + 20 dwellings (End of May)

+ 2024 Baseline + 30 dwellings (End of July) — at which point the roundabout
works should be completed

+ 2024 Baseline + 40 dwellings (end of October)

» 2024 Baseline + 49 dwellings (end of December

Technical Note 3 states:

As noted, it is anticipated that no more than 30 dwellings would be in place by the
completion of the highway works, however by the end of December 2025, it is anticipated
that the full 49 units could be occupied.

The timing and coordination of works to the public highway is subject to separate

permissions/ agreements in accordance with the New Roads and Streetworks Act and
Highways Act.

Page 15



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

A Section 278 road space permit is required to work on the public highway to alter the
layout of the highway in line with a signed S278 legal agreement. Work on the public
highway cannot lawfully commence until a permit has been issued and the signed permit
has been received. The necessary Temporary Traffic Management Permits must also be
received in suitable time to allow all phases of the works to be completed.

At the time of writing, the Highway Authority can confirm:
1. There is a S278 legal agreement for the scheme of works; and,
2. The Promoter does not currently have a S278 road space permit.

The Highway Development Management Team cannot confirm that the scheme of works
will be completed by July 2025 as indicated in Technical Note 3 and cannot confirm when
works will commence, the duration of the works programme nor the anticipated
completion without a S278 road space permit.

Conclusion

The Highway Authority has undertaken a robust assessment of the application. Based on
analysis of the information provided, the Highway Authority does not consider the impacts
of the development to be severe in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (December 2024).

WRS - Air Quality
No adverse comments.

Strategic Housing & Business Support Manager Bromsgrove District & Redditch

Borough Councils

e Further to discussion | am advised that the developer of the above planning
application has applied for a variation to planning condition 25 that no part of the
development shall be occupied to the occupation of no more than 49 dwellings on the
development until the appropriate highway works are undertaken.

e | am aware that the affordable housing on this site is being delivered through BDHT,
and contracts have exchange. The need for this affordable housing is significant. The
Council has large numbers of households residing in temporary accommodation for
lengthening periods which could be housed in the affordable housing from this
development or it can provide move on accommodation to those housed in unsuitable
accommodation on the housing register, thus freeing up additional affordable
accommodation in the district. Given the significant need for affordable housing and
the evidenced detrimental impacts on households living in unsuitable accommodation
the Strategic Housing Team would support the variation should it be amended to
provide for the occupation of the affordable housing in this instance.

Publicity
Site notices posted 02.05.2024, 09.07.2024, 11.03.2024 (expires 01.04.2025)
Press notice published 08.07.2024, 10.03.2025 (expires 31.03.2025)

62 objections have been received raising the following concerns:

e Contrary to the Inspector’s decision requiring roundabout before houses occupied
which was accepted by the developers

e Roundabout was a key enabler for the appeal to be allowed

Page 16



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

Existing infrastructure insufficient for current number of residents.

Bellway may apply for more occupations prior to completing the island

Will cause even more disruption at already compromised junction

More vehicles queuing, more air pollution, more driver frustration

More likelihood of vehicles going down Millfield Road endangering children going to

school along a narrow road with, in places, no footpath.

e Existing residents require quick access for emergency vehicles/deliveries — increased
congestion puts these at risk.

e Existing infrastructure cannot cope/make existing situation worse

e The former Greyhound pub site is unsightly

e Any survey reports showing a reduction in traffic is due to road closures and should
be disregarded.

e No date is stated for completion of the roundabout

Other matters have been raised but these are not material to the determination of the
application and have not been reported.

The Bromsgrove Society

e Objects to the application.

e |t was acknowledged by the developer (Catesby) at the appeal that the junction is
over capacity and was agreed that mitigation be provided prior to first occupation. The
Inspector imposed a no occupation condition.

e The Bromsgrove Society is concerned that this application will cause inconvenience
and cost to the local community and a deterioration in air quality.

e The junction is incorrectly modelled: number of lanes is inaccurate.

e |t appears to The Society that drivers will react to the increased delays purportedly
shown in the Applicant’s junction model by rat-running through Millfields in increasing
numbers, thereby compromising road safety and residential amenity in the Millfields
residential area

Bromsgrove District Housing Trust (BDHT)

e Supports the application - referring to the urgent need for increased social housing in
Bromsgrove. BDHT state that it is critical that the planning committee considers the
consequences of not approving the occupation of the affordable housing on Whitford
Road. This decision not only significantly affects individual families' lives but also
increases the council's financial expenditure on temporary accommodation, which is
at its highest level in over a decade.

e The limited supply of social housing in Bromsgrove in recent years has increased
pressure on families living in unsuitable conditions. This includes homelessness,
disabled individuals in inappropriate housing, and overcrowded families facing
exacerbated damp and mould issues, directly impacting children's health.

e This lack of housing not only worsens social inequality but also affects the overall
well-being and economic stability of Bromsgrove residents. By prioritising the release
of social housing properties on Whitford Road, we can ensure that 20 households
have access to safe and affordable homes. We urge you to consider this pressing
issue when determining whether the properties on Whitford Road can be occupied
before the roundabout is built.

Page 17



Plan reference

Agenda Item 4

Councillor Hopkins

e Has requested that the application be submitted to Planning Committee.

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles

BDP3 Future Housing and Employment Development
BDP5A Bromsgrove Town Expansion Sites

BDP16 Sustainable Transport

BDP19 High Quality Design

Others

National Planning Policy Framework (2024)
National Planning Practice Guidance

Relevant Planning History

24/00516/S73

Variation of condition 22 of planning Granted
permission APP/P1805/W/20/3245111
allowed on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA
16/1132):

FROM: 22) No dwelling shall be
occupied until the acoustic fencing on the
north western part of the site has been
erected in accordance with a scheme
which has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The acoustic fencing shall be
retained thereafter.

AMEND TO: 22) No dwelling shall be
occupied in relation to the reserved
matters 23/00993/REM (Miller

Homes phase) including plots 291 to 293
& plots 342 to 353 only of the approved
reserved matters

22/00090/REM (Bellway Homes phase)
or subsequent variations thereof until the
acoustic fencing

on the north-western part of the site, has
been erected in accordance with a
scheme which has

been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.
The acoustic fencing

shall be retained thereafter. The noise
mitigation measures of glazing,
ventilation and garden

Page 18

12.12.2024



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

fences referred to in the Environmental
Noise Assessment (22336-1- R8)
prepared by Noise.co.uk

dated 25 October 2024 shall be applied
to the approved reserved matters
22/00090/REM (Bellway

Homes phase) or subsequent variations
thereof in accordance with the following
details: the

Glazing and Ventilator Performance table
version 4 submitted on 09/12/24 and
Acoustic Private

Garden Fence drawing number SD-9-03
dated October 2024 unless alternative
other minor

variations of these details are submitted
to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority

prior to installation.

24/00150/REM  Reserved Matters application (Layout, Delegated
Scale, Appearance and Landscaping) to by Planning
outline planning permission 16/1132 Committee
(granted on appeal 08.08.2024
APP/P1805/W/20/3245111) for the Awaiting
erection of a retail unit and associated Legal
infrastructure within Site A. Agreement

23/00993/REM  Reserved Matters (Layout; scale; Approved 06.02.2025

appearance and landscaping) to outline
planning permission 16/1132 (granted on
appeal APP/P1805/W/20/3245111) for
the erection of 120 dwellings with
associated car parking, landscaping and
other infrastructure within the northern
section of Site A.

22/00090/REM  Reserved Matters (layout; scale; Approved 08.07.2022
appearance and landscaping) to outline
planning permission 16/1132 (granted on
appeal APP/P1805/W/20/3245111) - for
the erection of 370 dwellings with
associated car parking, landscaping and
other infrastructure within the southern
section of Site A
Non Material Amendment to condition 1
landscaping drawings of Reserved
Matters approval 22/00090/REM:
Replacement of translocated hedge.
New hedge planting along Whitford Road

Page 19



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

16/1132 Outline Planning Application for: Site A Allowed at 09.02.2021
(Land off Whitford Road) Appeal
Provision of up to 490 dwellings, Class  APP/P1805/
A1 retail local shop (up to 400 sgm), two W/20/324511
new priority accesses onto Whitford
Road, public open space, landscaping
and sustainable urban drainage; and
Site B (Land off Albert Road)

Demolition of Greyhound Public House,
provision of up to 15 dwellings, new
priority access onto Albert Road,
provision for a new roundabout,
landscaping and sustainable drainage.

13/0479 Residential development comprising up  Refused 21.08.2014
to 490 dwellings and small retail (Class
A1) shop; together with two new Dismissed at 03.08.2015

accesses onto Whitford Road; provision Appeal
of new public open space; landscaping;
and sustainable urban drainage

Assessment of Proposal

Proposal
Condition 25 prevents the occupation of any of the 490 dwellings granted planning

permission under the allowed appeal APP/P1805/W/20/3245111, until the junction at Fox
Lane/Rock Hill has been altered in accordance with the roundabout details shown on
drawing 7033-SK-005 revision F. The current application seeks to vary this in 2 respects:

e To amend the drawing details to also include a retaining wall required to support the
adjoining land at the former Greyhound Pub site.

e To allow occupation of 49 dwellings before the new roundabout at Fox Lane/Rock Hill
is altered.

The applicant has submitted a response to comments made by the Bromsgrove Society.
This has been added to the planning record and is available to view on the website. The
response states that:

¢ New survey data has been provided and suggests lower queueing occurring at the Fox
Lane/Rock Hill junction reducing further any likelihood of traffic routing through
Millfields.

e Surveys were undertaken on the specified date so that road works would not impact the
survey.

e TBS assume that the model for Arm A (Rock Hill NE bound) has two live lanes within
the model when there is in effect only a single lane on the approach. This is not correct.
The layout shown by Junctions 11 is a graphical representation of the movements that
wish to occur but is not specifying that number of lanes provided.

e Whilst there is a maximum queue of 21 vehicles on the approach as identified by TBS,
this occurs between the last 5 minutes of the peak hour (08:55 - 09:00) and last for no
more than 1 minute before the queue dissipates.

Page 20



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

Background
Bromsgrove District Council resisted the appeal in 2021 on the grounds of highway impact.

The alterations to the Fox Lane/Rock Hill junction were crucial in the appeal decision to
grant planning permission. This point is picked up in several of the public comments
received.

The proposal to vary the condition to allow occupation of some dwellings prior to the
alteration of the roundabout has been subject to amendments and the submission of
additional supporting information. This has occurred in response to concerns expressed by
both the Highway Authority and your officers.

Highway Matters

The current proposal seeks to allow the occupation of 49 dwellings and is supported by
survey data from 2024 and further modelling information (including a non-technical
summary) which is available to view under the application reference on the Council’s
website.

Bellway Homes anticipates that the roundabout could be completed by the end of the
school summer holidays and estimates the gradual occupation of 49 dwellings by the end
of December 2025. Supporting information has been provided on the following scenarios
with estimated dates of occupation:

 +8 dwellings (end of February)

» +20 dwellings (end of May)

» +30 dwellings (end of July)

* +40 dwellings (end of October)

» +49 dwellings (end of December)

Figure 4 from the applicant’'s modelling sets out the 2024 baseline recorded number of
queuing vehicles at Fox Lane / Rock Hill. Figure 4 is included within the Worcestershire
Highways - Bromsgrove Comments section above. The associated baseline AM Peak
delay on Fox Lane is 82 seconds. During the observed worst 15-minute period (8:45- 9:00)
where the baseline queueing is highest, the following additional time delays are added:

+ 8 dwellings + 0.1 of a second

+ 20 dwellings + 3.5 seconds

+ 30 dwellings + 5.4 seconds

* 40 dwellings + 12.9 seconds

* 49 dwellings + 13 seconds

It is clear that the supporting information demonstrates that occupation will result in an
increase in delays and queuing at the Fox Lane / Rock Hill junction.

Paragraph 116 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out that development
should only be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network, following
mitigation, would be severe, taking into account all reasonable future scenarios. Therefore,
it is necessary to consider whether the impact of the occupation of 49 dwellings would be
severe.

Page 21



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

The supporting information has been assessed by Worcestershire County Council
Highways. WCC is the statutory consultee providing specialist comments to the Local
Planning Authority on highway related matters. The Highways comments are provided in
full within the consultations section of this report. Members will note that the modelling
software used by the applicant is a widely used means of analysing priority junctions. Whilst
there are limitations in all models, based upon the submission, the Highway Authority does
not consider the model an unrealistic representation of network conditions where
congestion, queuing and delays do occur and are shown to in the model outputs.

The Highway comments explain that based on the information submitted, the deterioration
in network performance cannot reasonably be considered severe. Whilst the effect of
occupation will result in a deterioration of network performance, increased queuing and
delay and therefore inconvenience to road users, the scale and duration of the impact are
not considered to meet the severity threshold. No concerns have been raised by the
Highway Authority with regards to highway safety. Thus, it has been satisfactorily
demonstrated that there is no conflict with paragraph 116 of the NPPF, nor Policy BDP16
of the BDP.

The Committee is advised that the amended condition 25 would continue to require the
junction to be altered to provide the roundabout. The consultation response from the
Highway Authority confirms that the analysis of the supporting Technical Note 3
demonstrates the need to deliver the scheme at no later than the 49t dwelling occupation.
This aligns with the proposed amendment. On the basis of the information provided,
consultee comments and planning judgment, the proposal for occupation of 49 dwellings
is considered acceptable.

Bellway Homes anticipates that the roundabout will be completed by the end of the school
summer holidays. However, at the time of preparing this report a s278 road space permit
has not been issued by WCC. Therefore, although some works have been undertaken off
the adopted highway as part of the provision of the roundabout scheme, it is not yet known
when work can be undertaken to the adopted highway. This information is not required in
order to determine this planning application. The proposal is seeking occupation of 49
dwellings prior to the alteration of the junction and this has been demonstrated to be
satisfactory.

Some public comments express concern that another application may be submitted in the
future to further vary the number of dwellings that may be occupied before the junction is
altered. Any future application would be assessed on its own merits and has no bearing on
the assessment of this application before Committee.

Retaining Wall

The Highway Authority has confirmed that from a highway and transportation perspective,
there are no changes to the form, scale and footprint of the roundabout when comparing
7033-SK-005 revision F and 7033- SK-005 REV G. Revision G includes a retaining wall.

Retaining walls are a feature of this stretch of Fox Lane and Rock Hill and this is considered
acceptable in principle. It is proposed that the appearance of the new retaining wall will
emulate country stone — an additional condition will be required to approve the material to
ensure the satisfactory appearance of the wall in accordance with policy BDP19. The
position of the retaining wall is shown to extend close to a TPO tree. A tree work application

Page 22



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

has previously been granted under permission TPO23/019 to ‘Reduce canopy to allow
access for piling rig to install the retaining wall required for the junction improvement works
approved as part of the approved 470 home residential Development known as Whitford
Green, Whitford Road, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire’ with the submitted drawing indicating
a retaining wall close to the Willow tree. The Tree Officer has confirmed there are no
concerns regarding the impact of the development on the TPO tree - the impact on the tree
is considered to be acceptable.

Air Quality

Some public comments have objected to the application on the basis that air quality would
be adversely affected. WRS (Air Quality) has raised no concerns regarding air quality as a
result of a variation to occupation. The proposal is considered acceptable with regard to air
quality matters.

Affordable Housing

Comments in support of the application refer to the provision of affordable housing.
Members are advised that the proposed variation to the condition makes no reference to
the tenure of the 49 dwellings. The developer has indicated that it is aiming for a split of 20
affordable housing units (no information has been provided regarding the split between
social rent/shared ownership) and 29 private units but is unable to confirm the number of
units to be occupied as affordable housing. Members should be aware that the
determination of the application would have no control over the tenure of the dwellings to
be occupied. This would be at the discretion of the developer.

Conclusion

The further information submitted by the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the
impact on the highway from the occupation of 49 dwellings cannot reasonably be
considered severe, as confirmed by the Highway Authority. Therefore, the threshold for
refusing the application on highway grounds is not met; the proposal does not conflict with
paragraph 116 of the NPPF.

The appearance of the retaining wall can be satisfactorily achieved by means of planning
condition.

The proposed amended condition continues to secure the provision of the roundabout.
Other conditions attached to the outline planning permission will be applied to the s73
decision to ensure satisfactory development is achieved.

The requirements of the s106 Legal Agreement attached to the original appeal decision
continue to apply to any planning permission granted as a result of this S73 application and
thereby ensure that the impact of the development is satisfactory mitigated.

To conclude, the occupation of 49 dwellings prior to the alteration of the Fox Lane / Rock

Hill junction is considered acceptable with regards to planning policy and other material
planning considerations.

Page 23



Agenda Item 4

Plan reference

RECOMMENDATION:

(1) MINDED to GRANT permission to amend condition 25 of planning permission
APP/P1805/W/20/3245111 allowed on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA 16/1132)

(2) That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Assistant Director for Planning,
Leisure and Culture Services to agree the final scope and detailed wording and
numbering of conditions and other conditions attached to the original planning
permission.

Case Officer: Jo Chambers Tel: 01527 881408
Email: jo.chambers@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 24



24/00117/573

Land At Whitford Road Bromsgrove

Proposal to amend condition 25 No part of the development shall be occupied
until the junction of Fox Lane/ Rock Hill has been altered in accordance with the
scheme for a roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/ Rock Hill schematic ref
7033-SK-005 revision.

Gg abed

Recommendation: Minded to Grant: Delegated

7 wal epuaby



Variation of condition 25 of planning permission APP/P1805/W/20/3245111 allowed
on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA 16/1132):

FROM:

No part of the development shall be occupied until the junction of Fox Lane/ Rock Hill has
Peen altered in accordance with the scheme for a roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/
&Rock Hill schematic ref 7033-SK-005 revision.

o

9¢

TO:

No more than 49 dwellings shall be occupied until the junction of Fox Lane/Rock Hill has been
altered in accordance with the scheme for a roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/Rock Hill
schematic scheme ref 7033-SK-005 revision G and ancillary drawings 7033-s278-701 rev C02,
2015804 AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0002, 0003, 0004, 0005, 0006 REV CO02.

7 wal epuaby



)2 abed

Map 1 a2
Bromsgrove Town
Expansion Sites

Application site in relation

to Bromsgrove District
Plan site = BROM 3

e »
. ®
e @
T _
oM T
T Ll re
. e =g
Reswm Comive m
Devedopment Opportuninies
& @
Expuarrsann Rewde :
s 8 [ (=
ewers Bed (e Space b
LI : Q)
D (omeriden - B ot
o0 1%@ Arra Fetoll —

v W



Bellway Layout (ph 1)

Site A

Aerial View

enda ltem 4

rr— oL wnewonr [l Ao

| 9seyd

¢ °5eyd

1228




Schematic ref 7033-SK-005 revision F Schematic ref 7033-SK-005 revision G
6 | 12/12/24 | SH | RETAINING WALL INFORMATION ADDDED

®
1/

%
"Lt FORWARD VISBLTY 51 FORMARD WISIBLITY

. 71 FORNARD WISIBLITY

d

TORNARD EIBLITY
SCALE: 1-5000A3

FORWARD WISBLITY:  WATING VEHICLE
SCALE: 1500843

E (7 s
= £oD, 3 \ 2, > -
RS- RETION SURACHG & . - FRCTON SRACHG

w0
(¢
N
©

S % \ = \ “~SCHACGE T DENTFY EXSTIG DRNEWATS
/ 0.6 DETLAMED 41 DETACED DEION Y '~ J \ T0 B DETERMINED AT DETALED [ESIEN
\) Tm €0

2im KD,

—TANGENTIAL VIS, FIGH P TANGENTIAL VEBLITY TO THE RiGeT
/ A [FomwweD vsaLY gETaL
4 A FORNARD) USBATY DETAL _ SCALE: 1250803
WATTNG CAR VESBLE FROW Tomew_ . / X SCALE: 1250083 WATING CAR VSBLE FROM Hn\ 7 :
o & HIGH-FRCTEN. SURFICMG .
5 o’ 4
@)\?” ~ ‘g\/
ég.. . s &
L A5 DECREFANCY BEMEEN
b 7.

05 WAPPHC. D
TOPOGRAPHCAL suwr.f\ /
/

\ Y, I
\ ’ / 7 g /
\ ey /4 P
/ / 7 / /
d / 5 / i /
o y o 4
. / .
04 / t
’ / 4
DSCREPANCY EETHEE / / 3 S & >
* { g S £ /
TOPORAPHCAL SURVEY / 7
43m FORMRD VERLTY-—.. d b £3m FORWARD MSIBUTY__ '/ %
¢ / /
s ’
/ P
/. y
i o e /
i e kel
: iy fan)
A\ ~4

i




7033-5278-701-C02

y s | DO NOT SCALE

EXENT 0F 5278 WORKS.

1 AL DMENSONS ARE IN VERES UMESS OTHERWSE
SATED.

‘EULl DEPTH CARRAGEWAY
2. AL WORKS SHALL BE CONPLETED TO THE SATISFACTION OF CONSTRUCTED IN EXCAVATED VERGE / FOUTWAY /
\ THE  WORCESTERSHRE ~ COUNTY  COUNCL  (NCC) CARRIAGEWAY, T0: BE LAD TO DESGN LEVELS. REFER T0.
f [ 5 i o, 1 o L
2 St i Ko 0

N ./ /3 TS 0RANG 5 TO B PRINTED N COLOUR AND READ IN WCC TE I DETAL WOC-2017-400-07. REFER 10
S CONUNCTION WTH ALL_ DRAWNGS. AN THe PAVEUENT DETMS.

Wi
DRMNIGS 7033/50/002 FOR

SKISPY THEVSELVES THAT THERE AFE NO_DISCREPRNCES PUIE AND REPLACE SURFACE OOURSE. REFER 10
WTHIN THE DESGN PACK BEFORE. COMMENCING ON STE. T DRowne oS0/ 1R WNTRA. SECRORTN
N DOUBT 45K,

SURFACE COURSE AND BNDIR. REFER 10 DRANNG
ML OO WL U mrECTON g1 cchesR 7033/S0/002 FOR VATERAL SPECFICATON

FLLED WITH CAPPNG/TYPE 1 (CL 803) MATERAL T0. WC

£ oo o
AL s oo cormcron 10
FERESONANE FEQUREIENS, B 5o ™" e o st s
5. CROSS SECTIONS DETALNG TO THS DRAWNG CAN BE s,
FOUND ON WSP DRAWING NO. 7033/5278/140-143. AY  CONSTRUCTION AT _SPUTTER  ISLANDS.
ORI ST EOWER CoNSTOED 1 T 7
6 TR T e WA W jcowes o ] SARODON AU AD. PUSID D s
T SECFORO MO FROVOED STED AL GPEGIAY CHGTRTON, W Zomm. UG
Rt
7. 08 PRDESRAN REFGE DETALS, RFER 10 RANG Ho.
7033/50/01. WVEHCUUR CROSSOVER CONSTRUCTION. REFER TO WCC SO
gy

\ \ ) % / B FOR JONTIG A0 EHSTNG ROAD SURFICE REFER T0 WC
N\ € . / < SO WOC-2017~400-07 COVARED WIN 703%/50/005 V7] v v RFeR To w0 wee-2011-200-08

GRASSORETE, REFER T0 WOC SO HOG-2017-500-02

\ N
A\ \ 2 BUFF TACTILE PAVING SLABS. REFER TO WCC SD
X £ 162 (38 WD W DXTHG & PRIBTSD CIRUGEMY e
\ \ Wy 8 W s UPSING, REFR 10 B 5D
» /z,%/ L5525 / WCC-2017-490-02 COTANED WTHN 7033/50/005 RED TACTLE PANG SUBS AT CONTROLLED PEDESTRAN

y L / CROSSINGS. CONSTRUCTON BULD P 10 B€ A PR

Y V /. O E00MG WD AT S 5 Foown R 10 e (Bl DU L PG 1090 50 01750001

% /7 5D WOC-2017-400-06 CONTANED WTHN 7033/50/005 BT WTH R DITE (NTS JRRAKGED IS R T

140 o i
< / , B Al W o ESiag, o

AT-PEDESTRUN TACTLE PAVNG, WARSHALLS LAVBETH
ACCESS, WIH TRAISIION KEFE WHERE APPROPRITE DETERRENT PAYNG OF SMUAR T BE NSTALED T0
*= FREFER 10 WCC SO WO0-2017—400-08 CONTANED WAIFICTURERS  RECOMUENGATON
/ TN 7033/50/005
A RED COLOURED HRA WIH CHEPAIGS SURFACE CORSE.
25ram DEEP EDGING FOR VEHCLE OVERRUN AREAS. ] 5 crmncs S0z

JR REFER 10 WCC SO WCC-2017=400=05 CONTANED

WTHN 7035/50/005

///
\ //,,%////%

. 162 178 U0 W 1250m WP TO Y
/////,,‘% N ; % - W-2017-400-02. BCEF I

2
2
&
?
&
55
=
£
2
i

FEREBOARD EXPAISION JONTS T0 THE BACKNG
CONGRETE AT Sm CENTRES.

/ Lo EON FOOTIOY EDGNGS, TR 10 W SD

/ WCT-2017-400-D4 CONTANED WIS 7035/50/005

0€ abed

/ / & ey oo
'WATER AWAY FROM FOOTWAY. FOOTWAY ON HIGH SDE.
, . oo iy
7033/5D/005.
2 SP2 225mm DEEP SPLAY KERB UNIT LAID WITH T5mm o) s | e 418
TAND WITH BED AND BENCHING IN ACCORDANCE WITH O | -Au/m | WE | TEORMRY BATIER REMOVD. "
b = /S0/005; T | oo | we | wos 30 comeTs 240618 n | .
T v [ [ )
o R [ e e

o] e | |

o[ | e [ o s e ==
o [ | v [ e =
o o [ o oo o [

A-FIT FOR CONSTRUCTION

\\’sl)

s i, Bt RG21 44 UK.
T 24[0 D25 318B00.F+-440] 125631810
o

CATESBY ESTATES PLC
T
e
WHITFORD ROAD, BROISGROVE
ROCK HILL FOX LANE ROUNDABOUT
SURFACING & KERES

= = P

120 B s
T s [ | ne

7033-8278-701
Sameera]
iy © WSP UK Ltd

7 wa)| epusby



2015804-AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X -0002_C02

v

T¢ obed

4. ANY DIECREPANCES NOTED ON SITE ARE TOBE
REFOATED TD THE AARSLEFF BROLND ENGINEERING
ENGMEER [MMEDIATELY

PRESENCE OF EXISTING SERVICES AND STRUDTURES
SHOLILD BE INVESTIGATED PRIDR TD COMMENCEMENT
OF WORK ON SITE. ADEQUATE MEASURES SHOULD BE
MADE T0 FROTECT OR DIVERT AS APFROPRIATE
SETTMG OUT BY OTHERS

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO GROUND INVESTHSATION DATA
STATED, MUST BE REFORTED IMMEDUTELY TO THE
SITE ENGSMEER

DRAWING TO READ IN CONJUCTION

WITH GOR REPORT REF
“Z01584-AGE-01-00-AF-X-0001 AT

|—mnur secTion sg| POSF | MIMETH
oun gom) | (|
! o

[
[
[T
[T

| on | anas | us

[T PANEL | PANEL | TOTAL
Rer I ‘«m«um |k} | .
A | ook | 06 | ass | s

W | roeous 3 0
| ShDid 5

Bellway

=
BELLWAY HOMES LIMITED

ROCK HILL, BROMSGROVE

rwwer T
KING POST WALL
DRAWING OVERVIEW

PROEET  CHCR VoL LEVEL TP OLE WORERN
20104 - AGE- 22 - XX - DR - X - 0002

7 wal epuaby



2015804-AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0003_C02

ENGMEER IMMEDIATELY
PRESENC STING SERVICES AND STRUCTURES
EHOLILD B2 INVESTIGATED PRIDR 70 COMMENCEMENT

-

=
F WS, DN SITE. ADEDUATE MEASURES SHOULD BE
MADE TD PROTECT OR DIVERT AS APPROPRIATE.
& SETTING OUT BY OTHERS
T A 5 TO BRO! ON DATA
STATED, MUST BE REFORTED IMMECIATELY T0 THE
SITE ENGRIEER
DRAWRIG TO READ IN COMIUCTION
TEMFORARY EXCAVATIONS WILL BE BACKFILLED WITH
CLEAN COMPACTED GRANULAR FILL AND ANY PROFOSED
DRAINAGE INSTALLED LIPON COMPLETIN Y OTHERS s
‘i.) FOSTREF | SECTION S0 . u:"
K-\I;M JL PLETRITLTY &5
WA | 20 ns | 5
s
AT
=
DETALS FOR FOLLOW-ONWORKEE G
FACINGS, FIRESHING AND CLADDING B KFI0A_ | Pab2iie
TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY OTHERS EFIDR. | 0
QJ KING POST GENERAL ARRANGEMENT A
(Q SCALE - 1:50
w oA S
PFANEL PANEL PANEL ToTaL
N 2m | Penee| D i | o
A | omove | 05 | am 3
s e} W N e
e | (T T s
i P —————
- - . - b
e g g9
— = — — = A— - — o
= =
m
—— e ——— -
—_—— g - L
s
g m
g man gt wmm
1=
BELLWAY HOMES LIMITED
=
ROCK HILL, BROMSGROVE
B Tl
e KING POST WALL
T | HINEHED PORMR N Ve L) GiA & ELEVATION SHEET 1 OF 4
ECALE - 1:50 pp—— RETAINED GROUND LEVEL (RGL]
PPL PLING PLATFORM LEVEL RO
oW TOP OF WALL
Tor TOF OF CONGRETE LEVEL
ToE HINMLN ENSEDMENT LEVEL

7 wa)| epusby



2015804-AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0004_C02

£¢ abed

MPORARY EXCAVATIONS WiLL SE BACKFLLED WITH

CLEAN COMPACTED GRAMILAR FLL AND ANY PROPDSED

DRANAGE INETALLED LIFDN COMPLETION BY OTHERS

=

KR

L KPR

AL FOR FOLLOW-OM WORKS E0.

FACINDE. FINISHING AND CLADDING |5
O BE UNDERTAKEN BY OTHERS.

KING POST GENERAL ARRANDEMENT
SCALE- 150

- man

e

e

k-
|-
I}
WG POBT ELEVATION
BCALE- 150

HESUM TES 1L 1HE ARHSLEFS MU ENUINEESINL
ENGINEER IWMEDIATELY

5 PRESENCE OF EX:STING SERMICES AND STALCTURES
SHOULD BE MVESTIGATED PRIOR T COMMENCEMENT
OF WORK DN E4TE. ADEQUATE MEASURES EHOULD BE
MADE TO PROTECT OR DNVERT AS APPROFRIATE

SETTING DUT BY OTHERS

AN HBCREPANCIES TO GROUND INVESTIGATION DATA
STATED, MUST BE REFORTED IMMELSATELY TO THE
SITE ENGINEER

DRAWANG TO AEAD B4 OONJUCTION
WITH GOR AEROAT REF

“2015804-AGE 01-00-RP-X-0001 ADZ*

=S
| hcivbnsel sCeminmnd £ 1 -, 5 0T

| mosvage [secriowuge; ORE | LEwETH
S

s
1

e me

HEY

FINISHED FORMAATION LEVEL [FFL)

RETAMED GROUND LEVEL (RGL)

FRL FILING PLATF G LEVEL
Tow TOF OF WALL

ToC TGF OF CONCRETE LEVEL
TOE AIFERILI EMBEDMENT LEVEL

AARSLEFF
i
=
BELLWAY HOMES LIMITED
= ROCK HILL, BROMSGROVE
T

KING POST WALL
GA & ELEVATION SHEET 2 OF 4
TRICT ORI T LETL TIE MLT MAmEn
2015804 - AGE - ZZ - 00 - DR - X - 0004
ok 150 @ Al [ome CEToRER 634 _[oy 0O [oe M
e el
41 - APPROVED ooz |

7 wa)| epusby



2015804-AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0005_C02

POST REF |SECTION SIZE

SPOL | 203203446
P02 | 203203146

5
DETAILS FOR FOLLOW-ON WORKS E.G P3| 2038205406 5
FACINGS, FINISHING AND CLADDING IS KO0 | 203203805 5
\/)- : S 3 TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY OTHERS APOS_ | 203420315 5
\ 1 £FO5 203In203x36 5
\\(gl = APO7 | 203x203446 5
) kPon | B03aiindt 3
AERS, _Jﬂhwu-‘é
KP0a 20320346 5
X < { K208 | 203x203m46 }
) 2 s e
. ) P12 | 203x203446
J/A( \ L / KF13 | 3034303845
KEY PLAN ; . P14 | 2032036
SCALE - NTS HKING POST GENERAL ARRANGEMENT P15 | 203aisnis
= - SCALE - 1:50 P16 | 20320346

AP | 203308w46
P18 | 203203846
GF18 | 2033086
SFID | 20303nd6
e

i i i Lo fan e e fum

PANEL
T 7| MEIGHT [m)
KKDBOO/E 6
KKDEOD/E 0E
KKDBOD/8 06

|
1016 HEY L I o
T 8- T : ! ; )
2 T KP13
QJ a = ik ilid | =% ®Piz
(@) ] AGL - 42 03 = = — =
| { —_— _ AGL - 91.475
D Hemes ; =
= - i
w — g | =
I == e = = Tl L
= ba.aes = = Primy——, m 0| #ve | REVISED POST SPACINGS B ISSUED FOR. CORSTRKCTION
1 E L 0 | WE | ISSUED FOR AFFROVAL
'E!C- LR o R CHES T
I TOG = 89.1
| 1o~ eams =
MESTF (OO HHEETHOLT
| TOC - 8241 ﬁ
| HIISS
'Q( - 80016
2 | TOE = #7766
e o | | AARSLEFF
b - B7.166
s - EE T&E - BEONE
: 1 E ~ 86616
! E i T‘i"E = BB.3GE I
N
s - " X
e
(Chant
BELLWAY HOMES LIMITED
—
ROCK HILL, BROMSGROVE
Drawing Tl
XEY KING POST WALL 1
KING POST ELEVATION el PRETEDROMATION eV (FE GA & ELEVATION SHEET 3 OF 4 =
SCALE . 1.50 e RETAINED GROUND LEVEL (RGL)
PPL PILING PLATFORM LEVEL PROUECT ORIGIN WOL LEVEL TYPE ROLE HUMBER !
TOW TOP OF WALL BRSHON = AN —c 28 1o O i
o0 5P OF CONCRETELEVEL Scale: 150 @ A1 |pate: OCTOBER 20248y CO ore Mv
Status Rewision | Ciassfication
TOE MINIMUM EMBEDMENT LEVEL A1 - APPROVED | oo

=
D
=
I



2015804-AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0006_C02

G abed

TEMRORARY EXCAVATIONS WAL BE BACKFLLED WITH
CLEAN COMPACTED GRAMLILAR FLL AND ANY PROPOSED
DRMMAGE INSTALLED LPON COMPLETION 8Y OTHERS

T

kPt

DETAILS FOA FOLLOW-ON WORKS E.0
FACINGE. FINISHING AND CLADDMG I3
TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY OTHERS

FING POST GENEFAL ARRANGEMENT g4
[ - 150

.¥. EE

e

NGO POST ELEVATION

®P1s

ANY DISCREFANCIES NOTED ON SITE ARE TO BE
BEPCRTED TC THE AARSLEFF GROSND ENGINEERING
EWGNEER IMMEDIATELY.

5 PRESENCE OF EXSTING SERVICES AND STRUCTURES
SHOULD BE INVESTIGATED RRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT
OF WORK ON STTE. ADEOUATE MEASURES EHOLLD BE
MADE TO PROTECT OR DVERT 45 APPROPRIATE
SETTHNG OUT BY OTHERS

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO GROUND FWESTIGATION DATA
STATED, MUET BE REFORTED MMESATELY TO THE
SITE ENGHES

DFAWNG TO READ ¢ CONJUCTION

WITH GOR AEPOAT REF
01! 0001 AR

e
navE | 15

145

P

=

FINISHED FORMATION LEVEL [FFL}

RETARED GROUND LEVEL (RGLY

FILNG PLATFORM LEVEL

E B

AARSLEFF

Bellway

=
BELLWAY HOMES LIMITED
o ROCK HILL, BROMSGROVE
e

KING POST WALL
GA & ELEVATION SHEET 4 OF 4

TEE MOLE MUEEN
2015804 - AGE- IZ - X - DR - X - 000§

T T s N ) BT
= e o
A1 - APPROVED coz2

7 wa)| epusby



Photos Rock Hill / Fox Lane: extent of works 11/03/2025

i Wal| epuaby



Toucan crossing

J € abed

Plan for Whitford Road, Bromsgrove

Map and plan of the area
Map of Whitford Road, Bromsgrove and the proposed Toucan Crossing to be i

Description of the map

nstalled.

The map shows the proposed Toucan Crossing positioned on Whitford Road,

Bromsgrove: -
at a point 34 metres north of the junction with the Deansway and 115 metres
junction with Timberhonger Lane.

south of the

VIEWPORT 1
Eg) SCAE 130

"
A IMUNVLURSG L

vl 728" T,

s e e ———

- = i e . R < S

VEAY HOMES LIMITED
(SOUTH MIDLINDS!

WHITFORD ROAD, BROMSGROVE

5278 - wearTroRD RO
EGAL COLOURED PLAN

&

PRELIMINARY

7 wa)| epusby



This page is intentionally left blank



71/24

72124

73/24

74/24

Public Document Pegroka ltem 7

anning Committee
4th March 2025

BROMSGROVEDISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

TUEADAY 4TH MARCH 2025, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors M. Marshall (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), A. Bailes,
S. J. Baxter, J. Clarke, S. M. Evans (for agenda items 71/24 to
77/124), D. J. A. Forsythe, E. M. S. Gray, B. McEldowney and
J. D. Stanley

Observers: Councillor K. Taylor

Officers: Mr D M. Birch, Mr S Edden, Mr M Howarth and Mr G Day

TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF
SUBSTITUTES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor H. Jones.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor S. M. Evans declared in regard to agenda item 8 (Minute No
78/24) — To consider any other business. Councillor Evans stated that
due to the reports in relation to agenda item 8 being exempt, he would
clarify the nature of the interest during the private session.

TO CONFIRM THE ACCURACY OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 14TH JANUARY 2025

The minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 14™ January
2025, were received.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held
on 14" January 2025, be approved as a correct record.

UPDATES TO PLANNING APPLICATIONS REPORTED AT THE
MEETING (TO BE CIRCULATED PRIOR TO THE START OF THE

MEETING)

The Vice-Chairman announced that there were no update reports.

Page 39



Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee
4th March 2025

75124 22/01431/FUL - IMPORTATION OF MATERIAL TO RE-PROFILE AND
LEVEL LAND (RETROSPECTIVE). SUMACH, PRIORY ROAD,
DODFORD,BROMSGROVE, B61 9DA. MR. C. RUDGE

Officers presented the report and in doing so, drew Members’ attention
to the presentation slides, as detailed on pages 25 to 32 of the Public
Reports pack.

The application was for Sumach, Priory Road, Dodford, Bromsgrove,
B61 9DA and sought retrospective planning permission to re-profile and
level land.

Officers explained that the application was retrospective in nature and
that the Council’s attention was drawn to the site in May 2022, with an
application being submitted in November 2022. However, Officers noted
that materials were still being imported onto the site up until February
2024, after which no major additions were noted.

The site location was shown on page 26 of the Public Reports pack. The
current condition of the site was also highlighted and the images were
noted to have been taken in September 2024 after some topsoil had
been imported and grass seed had been sewn.

Officers detailed that no objections had been raised by relevant
consultees which included County Archaeology, the Council's
Conservation Officer and Worcester Regulatory Services (WRS).

At the invitation of the Vice-Chairman, Rachel Jennings, Local Resident,
Councillor J. Shapiro, Dodford with Grafton Parish Councillor and
Councillor K. Taylor, Ward Member, addressed the Committee in
objection to the application.

The following was clarified after questions from Members:

e The reason given by the applicant for the development was that
they wished to level off their back garden to create a flat playing
area for their family.

e The images were provided by the applicant, however, Officers
clarified that it was not unusual for images from applicants to be
used within an application and that a number of Officers including
himself had visited the site and could attest to the authenticity of
the images.

e That although it was possible that bat foraging and hunting
grounds were impacted, no evidence had been provided as to a
specific impact or harm which had been caused as a result of the
development.

e There were a number of other works which were being
considered such as a tarmac area and fence, however, it was
clarified to Members that only the matter of landscaping was to
be considered, as detailed in the application before them.

Page 40



Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee
4th March 2025

Members commented that should they refuse the application, the
applicant would likely appeal their decision. If the decision was appealed
to the Planning Inspectorate, the reviewing panel would not be from the
local area and after seeing the images of the site and lack of consultee
objections, the decision would likely be overturned with the potential for
significant costs against the Council. Therefore, it was a very difficult
position that Members and Officers were in when determining the
application.

Members expressed displeasure with the handling of the application and
that a stop was not put on the importation of materials when it was first
discovered in November 2022. Members were also displeased that the
application was retrospective, and permission was not sought before the
development had commenced. However, Officers clarified that the
retrospective nature of the application was not a consideration for
Members and that they needed to consider the application before them.

Members commented on the difference in soil height and that a 10-12m
elevation increase amounted to a very significant level of material being
imported onto the site, which would likely have amounted to 100’s of
Tonnes.

The nature of the evidence provided made it difficult for Members to
grasp the scale of the development as they felt they did not have a good
overview of the site with only internal images being provided. Members
commented that this made it difficult to come to a decision on the
application, as it could not be determined how the development site
stood when compared to adjacent properties and land contours.

Therefore, to permit Members a better overview of the development and
the impact on the local area, Councillor S. J. Baxter proposed an
Alternative Recommendation to defer the application to a later meeting
of the Planning Committee to permit a site visit to be undertaken by
Members. The Alternative Recommendation was Seconded by
Councillor D. J. A. Forsythe and on being put to the vote it was:

RESOLVED that having had regard to the development plan and to all
other material considerations, planning permission be deferred to a
future meeting of the Planning Committee subject to a site visit being
undertaken by Members.

Page 41



76/24

Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee
4th March 2025

24/01309/FUL - PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION,
RAISED PATIO INCLUDING RETAINING WALLS, STEPS & HANDRAIL,
NEW TRIPLE GARAGE, PORCH AND GARAGE CONVERSION
INCLUDING NEW RENDER FINISH TO FRONT AND PART SIDE
ELEVATIONS. NEW BOUNDARY WALL, RAILINGS AND AUTOMATIC
SLIDING GATE INCLUDING MODIFIED ACCESS AND ENLARGED
DRIVEWAY. 30 MIDDLEFIELD LANE, HAGLEY, DY9 0PX. MR & MRS
GLAZE

Officers presented the report and in doing so, drew Members’ attention
to the presentation slides, as detailed on pages 39 to 52 of the Public
Reports pack.

The application was for 30 Middlefield Lane, Hagley, DY9 OPX and
sought planning permission for a single storey rear extension, an
existing garage conversion and for the erection of a new triple garage.

Officers explained that the property was a large, detached dwelling
which sought permission for a number of works, and further drew
Members’ attention to the presentation slides detailing the location and
the current and proposed layouts as detailed on pages 40 to 48 of the
Public Reports pack. Officers noted the error in the aerial view on page
41 which labelled the dwelling as Number 28 whereas it was in fact
number 30.

A number of the proposed works did not require planning permission
and were covered under permitted development rights, therefore,
although all the works were detailed under the application, the main
point of consideration for Members was the new triple garage proposed.

No objections were raised by local residents nor consultees and the
application was brought before Members due to being called in by the
Ward Member. Officers further highlighted that one of the two large trees
as shown on page 45 of the Public Reports pack had already been felled
to allow the development. The felling was done entirely legally as there
was no Tree Preservation Order (TPO) attached at the time, however,
subsequently a TPO was attached to the other large specimen at the
front of the property.

Officers also displayed an image of a triple garage which was erected on
a local property (hnumber 49) to highlight that planning permission had
been granted locally for a similar development, this was noted as not
being part of the Public Reports pack, but was deemed relevant for
Members to be aware that previous similar developments had been
granted.

Members then debated the application which Officers had
recommended be approved and were largely in support of the
development. Members could see no material reason to object to the
application, Therefore, on being put to the vote it was:

Page 42



Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee
4th March 2025

RESOLVED that having had regard to the development plan and to all
other material considerations, planning permission be granted subject to
the Conditions as detailed on pages 37 and 38 of the Public Reports
pack.

77124 PLANNING PERFORMANCE INFORMATION - QUARTER THREE (1
OCTOBER 2024 - 31 DECEMBER 2024)

The Development Management Manager presented the report for the
Planning Performance Information Quarter 2 — 15t July to 315t December
2024.

The Development Management Manager stated that the figures were
still healthy, however, there had been a slight increase on the
percentage of decisions overturned at appeal to 7.7%. The increase was
attributed to having less applications coming before Members which had
caused an increase in the figures, however, this was still less than the
10% stipulated by Government so did not currently pose a concern.

It was noted that the two upheld “non-major” appeals were both
delegated decisions made by Officers and could be attributed to a
difference of opinion by the inspectorate and were not further
challenged.

Due to the nature of appeals and the process of calculating any cost
settlement decision, there was often a delay in any cost award.
Therefore, a cost decision had not been made yet on the upheld
appeals. Officers assured Members that when the information had been
received that they would include this in a future quarterly report,
ensuring that it would be made clear at the time which application the
cost was attributed to.

Members expressed their thanks and commented that the report was
positive and useful.

RESOLVED that the Planning Performance Information report, Quarter
2 — 15t July to 315 December 2024, be noted.

78124 TO CONSIDER ANY OTHER BUSINESS, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE
BEEN NOTIFIED TO THE HEAD OF LEGAL, EQUALITIES AND
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING AND WHICH THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE OF SO
URGENT A NATURE THAT IT CANNOT WAIT UNTIL THE NEXT
MEETING

The Vice-Chairman announced that an item had been received which
required an urgent decision to be taken by Members, the contents of
which were in the exempt supplementary pack, a copy of which had
been supplied to Members prior to the meeting commencing.

Page 43



Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee
4th March 2025

Due to the private nature of the information which Members needed to
consider, the deliberation and decision had to be taken in closed session
and a vote thereof was taken to go into closed session and it was:

RESOLVED: under Section 100 | of the Local Government Act 1972, as
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraph 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) of the said Act: which is
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege
could be maintained in legal proceedings

After returning to public session, The Vice-Chairman thanked Members
for their attendance and closed the meeting.

The meeting closed at 7.24 p.m.

Chairman

Page 44



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 24/00117/S73 - Variation of condition 25 of planning permission APP/P1805/W/20/3245111 allowed on appeal 09/02/2021 (LPA 16/1132): FROM: No part of the development shall be occupied until the junction of Fox Lane/ Rock Hill has been altered in accordance with the scheme for a roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/ Rock Hill schematic ref 7033-SK-005 revision F. AMEND TO:  No more than 49 dwellings shall be occupied until the junction of Fox Lane/Rock Hill has been altered in accordance with the scheme for a roundabout shown on the plan Fox Lane/Rock Hill schematic scheme ref 7033-SK-005 revision G and ancillary drawings 7033-s278-701 rev C02, 2015804   AGE-ZZ-XX-DR-X-0002, 0003, 0004, 0005, 0006 REV C02.   Land at Whitford Road, Bromsgrove. Bellway Homes
	Officer Presentation - 24.00117.S73 - Land at Whitford Road

	7 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meetings of the Planning Committee held on 4th March 2025 and 1st April 2025 (To Follow)
	Minutes
	Private Minutes  04/03/2025


